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THE FEE OF MAKERFIELD: WITH AN ACCOUNT
OF SOME OF ITS LORDS, THE BAROXNS
- OF NEWTON.

By William Beamont, Esq.

(Rzar Frnmvany 32w, 16871.)

ExcrisH historians have joined chorus in aseribing to our
immortal Alfred the institution of hundreds and townships
into which the country is now divided. Certain it is that
when he resumed the throne after his temporary retivement,
and found, owing to Danish misrnle, the ancient police of the
country in ruin, he first set himself to readjust and settle
upon their present basis the shires of the kingdom, and then
divided them into hundreds, and these aguein into vills, town-
ships, or decennaries. But fas ext ad haste doceri, and from
Denmark where hundreds, each under its own cemtenarius,
had been known both ns a civil and military division of the
country for two hundred years, Alfred probably introduced
that institution into England, althongh something similar to
it had prevailed among the ancient Germans, from whom
both the Franks who became mausters of Gaul, and the
Saxons who settled in England, were derived. In England,
however, and particularly in the northern counties, it seems
not to have been always wecessary that o hundred should
contain a hundred townships, for where a large distriet

happened to belong to one owner, such a distriet, without

reference to the number of its vills, was often constituted a

hundred. Gayton in Cheshire, and Newton and Warrington
E
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in Lancashire, beoames hundreds of this sort. (Hist. Chesh.
ii, 275-285, and the Domesday Survey of South Lancashire,)
Alfred’s great achievement, of which he is entitled to the full
merit, was his dividing the kingdom into tithings, decen-
naries, vills or townships, each containing ten families, and in
each of which—an excellent way to preserve the peace—every
man was made answerable for his neighbour, while in each
thers was o domestio tribunal where justice was administered
to every man at his own door. Parishes which existed at
this time a8 an eecclesinstical division were not the same as
tithings, nor were their boundaries necessarily coincident with
them. Of the vills or tithings of which I am to treat, a
furmer seneschal of the district, who had the gift of song, in
describing how they answered the call of the great Alfred to
meet im with their forces in the field, has given us a sort of
catalogue in versp—

On champing steads,
Bpoed generous hearts, select where Winwick's brow
plifts the stately spire, and draws the feet
To sainted Oswald's pilgrim haunted well

Stalwart champions under banners bright,
Led by a haughty warrior, rush from the marge
Of Newton's willowed stream, and nmple range
Of Maerefield, boasting its spread domain ;
Whose garrison with battle-axes nrmed,
Its onk-crown'd fortress, and the barrow old,
Quit rear'd majestic o'er its sunken dell.
With these in friendly :Ieujﬂw come sinewy
Each in his unscabbarded a brand,)
he flower of Golborne's Park and winding dale.
Impatient of restraint, on fire for fame,
Combing throng'd bands from Haydock's ample plain,
Or in corugeant armour sweei along,
Chiv bred in Garswood's beauteous home,
Or pmulous of equal fame, aspire
The valiant band, nursed where Bryn's swelling brow,
Protects its race, for prowess old renown'd,
Ready alike, Winstanley's gencrous line
Spreads from its lawns and closures fertile fresh.
While drawn from neighbour'd tracts adventurous rush
Comrades select o'er Culeheth's heathy range ;
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Colleagued with whom the Eﬂalllut velerans spring,
Impetuous sped, from Hin ﬁy‘u mansion site ;
Or onward githered till the Douglns' stream
Laves scenes yot sounding British Arthur's fame,
Where Wigan rears its burgh and bosied homes,
Iutent alike on trinmph and to chase
Plunder and Pagan fury from the land.

L1

(Alfred, by J, Fitcholt, B, 44.)

Before we pass on, some of these plnuala eall for a fow
remarks ; and first of these is Winwick. This place, like
many others in Sonth Laneashire, has its parish church placed
at its southern end, as if to show the quarter from which the
wave of population had first reached it. The learned Usher
was of opinion that it was the User Gweniwic of Nennius,
and had thence derived its name ; and De Caumont gives us
a casile in France called Vineck, a name which sounded by a
French tongue would seem very like Winwick. But we need
not go far to seck for an etymology of the name since it
plainly is derived from the two Saxon words win wwick, the
place of victory.

On the first planting of the Northumbrian kingdom we
might expeet to find a fortress placed on its southern boun-
dary, and such a fortress, with the king's palace near it, there
was probably on the Mersey nt Warrington.

The frequent inroads of their Mercian neighbours, however,
cansed the removal of the palace to Winwick, when the
defence of the frontier was left to the garrison at Warrington,
where king Oswald, the first of the Nortlumbrinns to intro-
duce Christianity into his dominions, bad placed St, Elfin,
probably one of the Teolmkill priests, whose name the
Domesday Survey preserves to us, to imstruct his people
in the new faith. We are fortunate in knowing Oswald's
history, and the date when he suffered martyrdom and was
raised to saimiship, which by inference gives us the date of
an early Lancashire parish. The king, who had passed his
early life in exile, and had so used his time as to improve his

G2




84

. great natural parts by study, was called home by the defeat

and death of his ancle in battle in the year 638, when,
mustering some forces, he encountered and defeated his
enemies near Hexham, and slew their leader. He began his
reign by establishing good laws, and teaching his people
religion and snbmission to rule. Often when Aidan, one of
his priests, was preaching to them Oswald might e seen
aocting as his intarpreter, while such was his compassion to
the poor that he oflen sent them food from his own table,
which so won upon the good opinion of the people that they
called him * The Bounteous Hand.” But his envious and
ambitious neighbour, Penda, soon found oceasion to quarrel
with him, and, having invaded his territories, surprised and
slew him near Winwick on the 5th August, 642, which
Spenser, assuming to be both a seer and a poet, foretells
when he says :—

His foe shall & huge host into Northumber lead,
With which he y Dawald shall subdue,
And erown with martyrdom his saered head.

Near the place where he fell there is a well, which bears
his nume, and near the church there is one of those ancient
wheel crosses ealled after Paulinus; but his most remarkable
memorial is the church itself, which is dedicated to him, and
round the cornice of which runs this monkish legend :—

Hie loeus Oswalde quondam placuit tibi valde
Nortanhunbrorum Elﬂ?ﬂ.ﬂ rex, nunque polorum
Regno tenes prato passus M areelde vocato
Poscimus hine a te nostri memor esto Beate.

(A line over the porch obliternted.)
Anno milleno quingenoque tricéno
Belater post Christum murnm renovaveral istum
Henriens Johnson coratus erat simul hie tune.

This place of yore did Oswald greatly love,
Northumbria's king, but now n saint abova,

Who in Marcelde's fiold did fghting fall.

Hear us, oh, blest one, when here to thee we call,
In fiftean hundred and just three times ten
Soluter restored and built this wall again,

And Henry Johnson here was curate then.

J—
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The pious prayer, * Reguiescal in pace,” inseribed in old
times over the grave of a saint, was but a piece of mockery,
for the snint was bot seldom allowed to rest in peace. King
Oswald's fate was indeed especially hard, for he was buried
piecemenl, His head and right arm, which at first were
buried at Lindisfarne, were afterwards translated thence, and
while his head was buried in St. Cuthbert's grave at Durham,
his right arm was removed to Bamborough, where it was
enclosed in a silver shrine. His left arm was in the possession
of Wulstan, at Worcester, to which place also his body, which
was first buried at Bardoey, was afterwards removed. [nisa
gign of the high estimation in which the saint was held that
a gecond head was found for him, which was enclosed in a
niello shrine, and held in great reverence at Hildesheim, while
a third arm, celebrated for its healing powers, was found for
him at Peterborough, and one of his bones was kept at York
ns nmong the most valued treasures of its minstar.

1f, as tradition asserts, king Oswald had a palace at Win-
wick, it was neither a stately nor a substantial strocture. No
wonder, therefore, that no traces of it remain. It was probably
built only of wood and wattles, snrrounded by a moat, much
after the fashion of the house of Cedrie of Rotherwood, as it
is described in fvanhoe,

Cnleheth,* another of the townships mentioned by our
loeal bard, puts in & claim to be that Celchyth in North-
umbria, where the three councils of 788, 801, and B16 were
held, at the first of which Offa crowned his son, raised
Lichfield to the rank of an archbishoprie, and proeured a
decree establishing the six genersl councils; at the second
Lichfield was reduced to its original rank, and at the third
there were made varions canons, and io particular that useful
one that bishops should visit their dioceses at least once a

* The Winwick Terrier of 1701, siates that there were these five lardshipa

in this tawnship—Culeheth, Risloy, Holeroft, Peafurlong, nnd Chateris, whish
last may mesn Charterera.
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yeoar, © Utpote hii audiunt qui raro audivnt verbum Dei."
King Offa presided ot the first two councils, Jaenbert was
archbishop at the first, Ethelhard at the second, and Wulfrid
at the third, (See Thorpe's Diplomatar. Anglic., 38, 45, and
72.)

Archbishop Parker was of opinion that these councils were
held in Northumbria, and both Sir Peter Leycester, a very
careful investigator of owr local antiguities, and Dr. Hook,
think that Cuoleheth in Winwick was their place of meeting.
(8ee P. Leyoester's Hist. Uhesh., i, 134, and Hook's Lives
of the Archbishops, 1, 250 n., 2060, 270,)% I Kenion, which
adjoins Culcheth, really means, as it is said, the place of tents,
and Kinknall-within-Culcheth, means the king's dwelling,
both may be memorials of these councils. (Whitaker's Hist.
of Manchester.)t

Newton, another vill in the bard's poetie eatalogue, which
oceupies a gite intermediate between Winwick and Wigan,
may have owed its origin to some calamity which befel one or
both of those fromtier towns, nnd we need be in no doubt
as to the meaning of its English name.

As to Wigan, the northern frontier of the distriet, it was
affirmed, says Camden; that it was formerly ealled Wibiggin,
and that he had nothing to say of its name save that in
Lancashire, they called a building a “biggin." (Britannia,
790.) But the Anglo-Saxon word “ wiggan,” to fight or

* But this is controverted in n late work, where it is said Cealchythe was
identifled with Culcheth in Lancashire, by Gibson (Anglo-Sex. Chrom. p. 08,
following Arebbishop Parker [ dntig. p. :l‘s‘l] Bpelman preferred s Mercian site,
in which be is undoubtedly right. Xll' (dunales i, 647 ), first pointad oub
Chelsen as the probable place, and on comparison of the eharters whare ik ocours,
there seoms no reasonable doubd that it 1s right. Neweeurt ( orium 1,
683, ) gives a8 the old forma of the name Cholses—Cheleheth, Chelolyheth,
Chelehyth, Chelehith ; the form Chelsey appearing first in 1564, The form in
the texation of Pope Nicholas is Chelchoth, Any sito near London, which was
regarded locally as in Merein, would be a good of m for the West
B;:ﬁjé, Kﬂnhi:h, and Mereisn bishops,—Haddan and Stobbe’ Councils, 1872,

4 , in motis.
» + The editor of Mamecestre (Chet. Bo,, iii, 564,) nsks whethor Chat Mogs is
indebied for its nama to Bt. Ohad, who was bigshop of Ldehfield in 667, and was
afterwards {ranslated to York.
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contend, offers a more probable origin of the name, and this
it may have obtained from the old fights which are known to
have taken place there, Near those shores from which our
Saxon ancestors came there is still a place of the same name,
which is made the subject of an allusion in Ochlenschlager’s
play of * Palantoké,” Harold asks—

Wer machte zum Statthalter dich in Wigen ?

and Schwend replies—

Diu sandest mich naeh Wigen und nach Schonen.

Who made thes chiel in Wigen ?

"T'was thou didst send me forth to Wigen and to Schonen.
About the year 516, when the chivalrous Arthur wus

struggling to re-establish British supremany, several battles
ogcurred on the banks of the Douglas, which have besn
alluded to not only by our local bard but by the present
Laureate—

And Laneslot spoke
And answered him at full as having been
With Arthur in the fight, which all dey long
Rang by the white mouth of the violent Glem,
And in the four wild baltles by the shore

Of Duglas.
(Tennyson’s Jdylls, p. 102.)

Tradition makes Wigan to have been the scene of these
battles, and repeated discoveries of remnins strongly econfirm
the tradition, Untl the year 1770, there existed at Wigan
a ponsiderable British barrow, ealled the Hasty Knoll, which
was composed of small stones taken out of the bed of the
Douglas, and which probably marked the site of these bautles.
In the knoll there were found numerous fragments of ironm,
varions military weapons, such as our ancestors buried in the
graves of their heroes, and under all a cavity seven feet in
length, filled with black earth and the decomposed remains of
one of the fallen ehieftains, (Whitaker's Hisé. Man., Saxon
Period ii.)




88

The enstom of heaping such memorials over those who
have fallen in battle has prevailed from the emrliest times, and
the native bard whom we have already mentioned thus refers
1o it—

Others with toil eolleat
Hugh stones and enrthT{ portions, whenos ta raise
The hilly mounds, which o'er their comrades dear
Heap'd numerons may display to future times
The field of former slaughter. Thus while round,
Soft in their earthy beds, the living lny
The warriors fallen, snd by their side dispose,
As wont, the spear and shield, the solemn priests,

In ﬂuwiu%gumumﬂ habited pass slow,
On every hand invoking heavenly graoe |

(Fitohett's Alfred, i, 55.)

From the Domesday Sorvey we learn, that in Neweton
hundred there were in king Edward’s time, V hides, of these
T was in the demesne. Thé church of the same manor had
I carucate of land, and Saint * Oswold * of the same vill had
11 carucates of land, free of every thing. The other land of
this manor, XV men ealled drenghes, held for XV manors,
which were berewicks of this manor, and among them all
these men rendered xxx shillings.

Now the Newton hondred, which is hers desoribed, and
which comprised the two parishes of Winwick and Wigan, in
which there were much fewer than o hundred vills, is with a
trifling exception identical with the fee of which we are to
treat. By suecession from King Oswald the Martyr, Edward
the Confessor was its head, aud all the land of s fifteen
subordinate manors or berewicks, was held unnder him by
an equal number of drenghes. Berewicks, which in the
Domesday Survey oecur only in our northern counnties and
in Flintshire, but are mentioned in many Saxon charters
referred to in Duecange, and also in the Sharnburn charter,
though its genuineness is suspected, were hamlets within a
manor which possibly ebtained their distinctive name from the
crops of that poor grain called bere, which were raised in them,
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But Ducange, who seems not to agree with this etymology of
the name, prefers to derive it from the Saxon ferfer wil, that
is, vicus manerdi, but the northern berewicks being held by
persons who were to render husbandry services, rather supports
the idea of their name being taken from the growth of grain.
The drenghes are supposed to derive their name either from
thingus, a low Latin word for a thane, or from the Anglo-
Saxon, dreogan, the original of our word to drudge, and
henee the boy who attends to the eabin in a Norwegian vessel
is called at this day the cabin-drengh. According to Spelman
(Glossary 186, edit. 1604) the drenghes were military vaseals,
who or whose ancestors had held their patrimony before the
Conquest, but the better opinion now is, that the drengh was
the lowest landowner who had a permanent intersst in the
soil, and that his position was midway between the freeman
and the villein. In some respects his services wers the same
a8 the villein's, but though he rendered boons and plowed,
gowed and harrowed the lord's lands like him, he rendered
these services, not personally, but by the villeins under him,
he and his household being exempt. His tenure was inferior
to knight's service, or free tenure, but from its being a perma-
nent tenure, and from his being personally exempt from
servile work, it was superior to villenage, and this view of it
is confirmed by a recemtly discovered charter, by which &
drengage holding is converted into a tenure by kuight's
sarviee, and by the letter which Bishop Flambard addressed
to all his thanes and drenghes, which seems to shew that a
drengh who held more manors than one was enlled a thane,
(Boldon Book, by Surtees So., Append. x1ii.)

The Newton hundred eontiined two parish churches, which
though not named are sufficiently referred to in the Domesdey
Survey. Thuos it is said “ the church of the same manor had
““one garucate, and Saint Oswald of the same wvill had twe
* parncates free of everything.” It is certain that the church

A e




‘90

with its one caracate was at Wigen, and that Saint Oswald's
with its two carncates was at Winwick. Wigan was a favoured
church, but Winwick was still more highly favoured. It had
donble the endowment of either Walton or de'iugtorn. and
it enjoyed the rare privilege of being exempt from all taxes,
even the Dane gelt, which was shared by no other church in
Lancashire, except Whalley.

A number of woods, which coversd, when they were added
together, an area of sixty sguare miles, were seattered over the
district, in which beside their other wild inhabitants, there
were aeries of hawks kept for falconry, not them ss now a
mers amusement, but almost a necessity of the time. Exeept
two, all the free men of the hundred (a significant term,
shewing that some of our ancestors were serfs or bondmen)
were liable to the same custom as the men of West Derby,
except that, which was perhaps either because their land was
better, or because purt of the hundred was exempt from all
taxes, they did two more days’ work for the king in time of
harvest, which seems then to have happened in Angust as it
does now. The two exempted free men were privileged
persons, had the sweregild or forfeiture for rape and bloodshed,
and had also the right of free feeding for their hogs in the
lord's woods. The farm rent paid to the king for the whole
hundred was only ten pounds ten shillings.

What was the meaning of some of the terms, and what the
exact extent of many of the measures used in the Domesday
Survey, we do not know with certainty, but clearly the Aide,
ong of the most frequent of them, did not mean that elassic
quantity used to define the bounds of Rome's ancient rival,
Carthage—

Quantum taurine possint circumdure tergo.

As much ground
As with an ox's hide they might surround.

Many of the Domesday measures are thought to have been
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a sort of compromise between superficial extent and productive
value, but in these northern parts the hide seems to have
contained six cnruentes of eight bovates, each of which
contained sixteen acres, so that a whole carueate consisted of
128, or rather more than six score acres, the favourite number
or tale by which, as the proverb runs, our ancestors were fond
of reckoning most articles—

Five gcors of men, money, and pins,

Hix seore of all other things.

If it be true then that the hide denoted ploughable lend,
and the carucate that actually plonghed, there wers 8,840
acres of the former, and including the church land, 1,620
acres of the latter in the hundred or manor of Newton at the
time of the survey, from which it would seem that of the
whole hundred, now ascertained to contain nbout 53,581 acres,
there was, after deducting 88,400 acres of wood, a tenth part
of the whole, then capable of being ploughed.

From the evidence we have of the condition of the Fee of
Makerfield in Saxon times, it is elear that the plough, though
& more necessary, was then not so honourable an implement
as the sword. In those ages men could not, nay even dared
not walk alone, and as a consequence people generally, and
all the inhabitante of cities and boroughs in particular,
ranged themselves under the banner of some powerful per-
sonage, and lived beneath the shade of his eastle in guilds or
fraternities, the more safely and securely to carry on the
several callings in which they were engaged. In the hundred
of Newton we may safsly conclude that there were at least the
three towns of Newton, Winwick, and Wigan, in which the
trading community were thus banded and eollected together,

The Hundred of Newton baving thus resolved itself into
the Fee of Makerfield, you have a right to ask for a definition
of the term fee. The word see, then, has various meanings.
Tt sometimes signifies the vales expected by the domesties from
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the visitors of a great house, where it is of the nature of a
gift, a sort of English Backsheish ; something morally, but
not legally due. At other times it may mean the reward to
the servants at an hotel, whieh from a bad enstom has grown
to be an established right. Again, it may be applied to the
regulated and established payments made by their clients and
patients to members of the two learned professions of law and
physio, whose palms are said to have a peculiar muscle for
weighing and spprecinting fees called the musenlus guinearum,
or guinea muscle. Or, lastly, it may signify the most exten-
sive interest known to the law which any man ean have in
lands in England, and which n poet, better acquainted with
Themis than the Muses, thus describes in verse :—

Tenant in {eo—

Bim Ph is ha

Who needs neither quake nor quiver,
For he holds his lands,
Without fetter or hands,
To him and his heirs for evar.

None of these senses of the word, however, will meet the use
I intend to make of it, and wp shall find it 0 meaning distinct
and different from each and all of these.

When the custom prevailed, as it did all over Europe in
fendal times, and more especially in England after the Norman
Conquest, of rewarding all who hed assisted to conquer a
country with a gift of part of the lands they had conguered,
the gift was called a feud benefice, or fee; and every such
gift by its very terms involved the mutual relations of protee-
tion in the giver and service in the receiver,¥

* It did nob nlways happen thet o gifl without the former owner's consent,

wns 5o happily thwarted ua in the cass of that spirited Saxon, Ln\t;hmm
wards Bulatrode, whose story haa been tumed into the following ballad (—

N fured otic slren when baw'd the land Tostant on banded koee, the knight
Banesih the Norman swe i' His ready homags pa) d‘

And none of congn'ring Wi finm's band And strabght (o eize his new fll'n right,
Ungoardon'd went gway ! His men il wrnis srrsy'd |

Thue spaks he to the bold Fitzurse To Ledghion wwilt the fosmen eame,
" The Lelghton lande are mioe ; Iin bopes, era dawn of day

Thine they alsll bo—1ot pons raverss By nighi, oy feloos seige thoir gema,

This gifi bo thee and thine * The Leighton lands might they.
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If the fendal gift were large the receiver in his turn granted
out pertions of it to his followers, to be held from him on the
like terms as he held the whole from his superior. All such
gifis were originally called fees. The larger of them (which,
owing military service, are called knights' foes) generally
embraced several dependent manors, all held of it, all dependent
upon it, and all owing it suit and service. Such a paramount
manor was that of Newton, called in the Domesday Survey
the hundred of Newton, and which is now culled Tug Fer oF
MAKERFIELD, a territory of great extent, comprising within
its limits no less than these nineteen townships :—

1 Nowton 4 Golborne
2 Wigan® & Haydockt
# Lowton ¢ Ince
Tha newn by Ulrle, ton's Uane, b | the thane replled ; “ bring me
Was bonrd witheut l‘ﬁn oot my hard the bull;
* Heaven will " hun}d“th-!l'hlmuinud.u Thos mounted, [ eill hmm& T
Ba rabbors who thy may. “Tho hing's helssts at (il
S bar the gutes, the drawbridge rear;” Now Whnng, the bull, had aiden ke smow
And cn. the highest towar Which, pure i, reann of igin, o
Upross his banner, with o ohesr Takew, as i falls to sarth bojow,
‘rom all the Lelghton power, Eitadng an it spoiless white.
Now hark, a summons lood and shrill (i alewal wo sirange, with daoniless hrow,
‘Those custle warriors calls, Ulrie 1o sourt ropairs |
To yiskd it to Fitzures's will, Thare pees Lhn kinﬂ,lml lim ewand row
And own themselyes his thenlls. This royal mandate bears |
Hwiftly from SBaxon mi * Fitzurss shall gthor guordon bave,
And bows CAE Than brave men's lduds ke thine ;
Sowy e foeman whore it foll, Take back thine mrn, thia all I aruve
And g bold hearte quall. Fealty for me anl mine !

Ilnm Linsh'd I.Iunbl.-n whmﬂ-ﬂmﬁl king " Go" safd the kiog, ® for T to then
horald calls, * Forbear ‘l‘h'_t Haxon lmnds reatars ;
I.Tldu tor then oot [ 'hrln; inl:'-mn banoeforth slall Hulltl'ndn be,
That flion to court repair,’ Leighton be no more.”

* The Bailiffs of Wigan dﬂﬁ G5 BA. al evory Newton Court nntil
the aet passed for the "ﬂlﬁ:!mnf unjcipal Corporntions Aet.”

{tH dn Eydok held this place as o meme manor of Newton, temp. Hon.
II1, and in 18 Ed, IT, Gilbert da Haydoe had Beonss to impurk the place, and
to h..ve#um:ninBﬂdlly

In the narrative D¢ Celebratione Misse this story is told—A gentloman of
Haydos had a eoneubing who died. After ber death ho marrad, and goi
day by the cross sl Newton, her apivit appeared to him and entrented ﬂ
procurs masses for her soul, that she might be relepsed from the uuluj::umt
she was sulfering. She b him {o put his band to her head. He did so,
and toak thence half & handful of black hair, upon which she entreated him to
bave n mass said for every hair, mdmuﬂmﬂtnmaathlmnmmud
declara the result. Bhe met him aflerwards and exclsimed jgyfnll
benedictus sls intor homines qui liberasti me de mazimd pend, n."—HﬂS_
Trin. Coll., Oxford, B, 18. A work by Richard Puttes
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7 Pemberton 13 Kenyon
8 The two DBillinges, 14 Ashton
formerly one town- 15 Southworth-with-Croft

ship 16 Middleton and Arbury
9 Winstanley 17 Woolston-with-Martins-
10 Oerall «croft
11 Hindley* 18 Poulton-with-Fearnhead
12 Abram 19 Winwick-with-Hulme.

All these townships being within the fes, and, except
Winwick, all of them owe suit and servige at its courts,
and during the continuance of the feudal tenures, which
were only abolished at the Restoration, yielded the lord a
fruitful harvest in the shape of reliefs, wardships, marriages,
beriots, and other services. Wiowiek, which, as we have
seen, had been very early erected into a parish, had, pro-
bably before the Conquest, passed into the hands of some
religions house, although no traces of such a connection
appeared in the presemtations of the early rectors. But at
Nostell, in Yorkshire, Ilbert de Lacy, in the time of Willinm
Rufus, in honour of 8t. Oswald, endowed a priory of eanons
regular, of the order of 8t. Augustine. (Tanmer's Netifia,
645.) On this priory Roger of Poicton, who was patron of
the church, bestowed the living of Winwick, which gift
Stephen, Barl of Moveton, before he became king, afterwards
confirmed. (Testa de Nev., Dugdale's Monast., iii, 82.) 1If
our conjecture that Winwick was in the hands of the religious
before the Conquest be correct, then both Roger's grant and
Stephen’s were only confirmations of some still earlier gift.
In consequence of this gift, however, Winwick, though within
the limits of the Fee of Makerfield, is not called over au its
court, and what marks its independence more distinctly, the
rector holds a separate conrt of his own.

Going back for a few minutes to the year of the Domesday
Burvey, 1086, and ascending Billinge or Ashurst Hill, if we

* Bob. d¢ Hindley fourth son of Hogh de Hindloy bad s geant trom Rob.
Banastre, temp. Ed. 1. e
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cast our eyes over the wide borders of the Fee of Makerfield,
we shall see, instend of a coltivated country divided by
numerous enclosurves, smiling like a garden, teeming with
population, and accessible on all sides by roads, canals, and
railways, and busy in the pursuit of arts, commerce, and
manufhctures, a great sea of wood, tenanted by wild animals,
gome of them of races now nearly extinot, divided here and
there by large commons of moor, heath, and waste, with an
occasional piece of water or mere, about which are thinly
soattered the mud cabins of its one hundred and fifty inhabi-
tants, in the midst of their small green patches of cultivation,
which look like islets in a dreary waste, and at the two
extremities of the district, their towers pointing heavenward,
are the two churches of Wigan and Winwick, then probably
humble structures of waoad.

If from the place we turn our sttention to the people, we
shall sce, perhaps, two or three franklins or yeomen, each in

_ his short green kirtle, with hose of the same colour, a leathern

cap, a short sword, a horn slung over his shoulder, a long
bow in his hand, and in his belt a bundle of arrows, In
another direction a serf of one of the two privileged franklins
is driving his master’s swine to feed upon the mast and scorns
of the neighbourhood. e has a staff in his hand ; his dress
is o long jacket made of the skin of some four-footed animal,
tanned with the hair on. Tt has been put on over his head,
like a frock, aoud is buckled round his waist with a girdle.
He has sandals, and not shoes, upon his feet. On one side
hangs his gypsiére pouch or serip, sud on the other a ram'’s
horn, with which from time to time he issues his commands
to his attendant hound and collects his herd of grunters when
they wander or miss the pasture. The evening sun is casting
slant beams on Winwick tower, and acvoss the velvet turfl of
its adjoining demesne, at the call of its single bell, a shaven
priest is hastening to perform the office of vespers.
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After the foregoing account of the Fee of Makerfiold, we
pass on to give some account of its lords, the Barons of
Newton.

If Dr. Hume is right in deriving the name of Mukerfield
from the British words * maes " and * hir," & field and a plain,
the name would seem to be formed on the same model as that
of Tor-pen-how-hill, cach syllable of which means the same
thing. 1In the Conqueror’s general distribution of lands
among his soldiers and followers at the Conquest, this portion
of South Lancashire fell to the lot of Roger of Poicton.
The Banastres had followed the Conqueror, and while Robert,
who was one of them, ccours in the celebrated roll of Battle
Abbey, Richard, who was probably his son, was witness to &
charter of Hugh Lupus, Earl of Chester, as well as to another
charter of Randle I, the earl's nephew. (Hist. Chesh. i, 13,
19.) Robert, who is said to have helped Roger of Poictou to
win lis possessions, received from him as his share of the
spolia apimea, the fee of Makerfield. From Hugh Lupus most
probably he also received Prestatyn in North Wales. As to
the origin of the Banastre name the snggestions have been
various. Camden, in his remains, expresses an opinion that
it was n corruption from balneator, master or filler of the
bath, snd just as the architectural term baluster has come to
be called indifferently a baluster or a banister, so the great
antiquary probably thonght the Banastre name, wanting the
prefix of © del,” wns derived rather from the Latin then the
French. But Ducange gives us the words banaste, banastre,
and lewate, as the French nomes for a basket or ereel,
ind there are persons, and amongst them their excellent
deseendant, the author of the family pedigree (dreh. Cam-
browsis iii}), who think that as the good Lancashire name of
Bushel enme from no nobler word than the low Latin busellus,
a bushel, so the Bapastres derive theirs also from banasire.
The early cognizance of the Bansstres, n pair of what may
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either be- leather buckets, water bags, or creels, does not
settle tho point either way, and though we should prefer
dalneator us the more honourable, the evidence rather inclines
us to think the ereel is more likely to have given origin to
the name.

It Robert Banastre, who was sometimes ealled Robert de
Waleton, did any great actious, they are hidden in oblivion,
a4 ho lived in an age that had few chroniclers, and we may
well imagive that in defending himself aud his possessions
against their farmer owners, he found abundant ocenpation.
He was probably sucoeeded by his son Richard, of whom
history tells us no more than that he appeared ns witness on
the two ocensions we have already mentioned. To him sue-
ceeded a second Robert Banastre, who, fancying himself more
settled in his possessions, built a castle upon his demesne of
Prestatyn ; but he, however, had counted too soon upon peace
aud security, for about the year 1107, the Welsh chiefiain,
Owen Gwynedd, having attacked him and taken his eastle,
Robert, after a vain attempt to maintain his ground, withdrew
with all his people into Lancashire, where their wholesale
immigration obiained for them the name of Les Westrois or
Westerns, a nome which they retained for more than a century.
This Robert was lord of the Fee of Makerfield, which gave to
his descendants the feudal title of Baron of Newton. He had
also a grant, or more probably & confirmation, from the first
Heury de Lacy of the lordship of Walton le Dale, with its
members pro servitio unius militis, and sbout the year 1147
we find him o benefactor to Basingwerk Abbey. We do not
know whom Robert married, but we know that he left three
sons, Richard, the eldest, whe dying without issue before the
year 1204, was suceceeded by his brother Warin, who married
a wife named Sara, and dying without issue was sucoeeded, in
16 John, (1213,) by Thurstan, his youngest brother, whose
wife's name was Cecilia. It is remarkable how slowly the
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names of the wives of onr ancestors emerge into light in old
times, At first they are quite anonymous, then their christian
names simply appear, after which we hiave both their christian
and surnames, and ot length we learn both who and what they
were. The law was at that time very unsettled, * might often
*“ made right,” and then if ever, as Thurstan found, posgession
really did make nine parts of the law, for when he came to
his estate, the king exaoted from him 500 marks for granting
him an inquest of office to ascertuin whether he was entitled
to the lands of Robert his father and Warin his brother.
Warin sealed his charters with the family badge or cognizance
of two creels, buckets, or skin-bags enclosed in an external
network to strengthen them. Before the time of Thurstan
and Cecilia the great Banastre inheritance had passed for two
generations throngh collaterals. But Thurstan and Cecilia
had now two sons, of whom Robert, the eldest, who married
Clemeontin, sucoseded to the barony, and Thurstan, who
married Maria Vernon, to whom his brother gave lands at
Newton in Wirrall, aud from whom sprang the Banustres of
Bapk and Brotherton, This line had for their arms—argent, a
cross putonoee, sable.

Robert Fitz Thurstan Banastre, being only & year old in
1219, when his father died, his wardship and marriage de-
volved upon the king, who sold both for 500 marks, & sum
which shews the great value of the property, to Philip de
Orreby, justice of Chester, who married him to his daughter
Clementia. Henceforward the Banastres hore a coat of gules,
three chevronels argent, evideutly derived from that of Orreby,
with a change of tinoture, whieh was & common practice on
the adoption of the arms of an heiress. On their seal they
used their old badge of creels or water buckets on either side
of the shield-like supporters. His early death, which might
have been hastened by the troubles of those times, bappened
before the 27th July, 1242, By his wife, who survived him,
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he had issue John, who died an infant before 16 Henry 111,
(1241,) and Robert, who sorvived him. It was either by

k Robert Fitz Thurstan as Baron of Newton, or his son, that
Sir John Mansel was presented to the rectory of Wigan,

Sir John, who was of the house of Margam, in Cnermar-
thenshire, being the son of Sir Henry Mansel, was unusually
well edncated for that time. Beginning life as a layman and
a soldier, it was not until he had become the parent of three
children and lost a first wife and probably a second that his
grief or his ambition led him to take orders. As an eeclesi-
astic he became the trosted and faithful councillor of Henry
ITI. He was a sucoessful ambassador to France, the Pope,
Seotland, and Spain, and from the latter he bronght back the
celebrated treaty with Alphonso of Castile, by which he
renounced to the King of England all elaim to Gascony, and
b which, with its golden seal, is still preserved among the publie

records of the kingdom. When in Secotland in 1248, he was
detached by the ambassadors from England to lead an armed
band against Norham. In 1254 he was appointad proxy to
{ wed the Princess Eleanor, and opon the actunl presemce of
Ir the bridegroom being insisted upon he accompanied the queen

and Prince Edward to Burgos, and was present st the marriage.
He was chaplain to the Pope and to Henry 111, provost of
Beverley, treasurer of York, and chancellor of 8t. Panl's, He
lield & deanery and stalls in several cathedrals, and upwards
of 300 ordinary benefices, the wealth of which, said to amount
to 18,000 marks a year, enabled him to entertain the kings
& and queens of England and Seotland, Prince Edward, and
& the nobles and prelates of the court at lis house in Tothill
fields. His covetousness, and still more his devotion to
Henry 111, drew upon him the displeasure of Simon de Mont-
[ fort, and brought about his exile and ruin; but Henry, who

always stood his friend, deseribed him ** as educated under
“ our wing, whose ability, morals, and merits we have approved
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“ from our youth up,” a testimony confirmed by his appoint-
ment a8 one of the executors of his will in 1252, He died
beyond the sea, “in paupertale et dolore maximo,” in 1208,
f Arohwologia Cambrensis, 3 series, xxxviii, 108,)

Robert Fitz Hobert Banastre, Baron of Newton, in 28
Henry TIT, (1242,) was in ward to the prior of Penwortham.
butin the account of that priory John, and not Robert, is men-
tioned as the ward's name, (Chet. Soc. pref. xxxii) ; probably
the elder brother had died in infancy, and then Robert became
the ward. These repeated wardships muost have sadly impover-
ished the Banasire estate, and we wonder that they did not
wholly consume it. While benefiting by his ward's estate, it is
to be hoped that the prior, whose ealling should have made him
love learning, did not neglect his edueation. When he came
of age, Robert, who had n taste for field sports, obtained from
the king a charter of free warren in his manors of Newton
and Walton, and in his menor of Woolston, in the parish of
Warrington. Without such n license no man in those days
could justify taking birds or beasts of warren, even on his
own land, and there are instances of keen sportsmen who,
having obtained such o license, actually sold their lands and
retained the right to sport over them. The beasts and birds
of free warren, in opposition to those of the forest, were hares,
conies, and roes, partridges, rails, and quails, woodcooks and
pheasants, mallards and herons, But Robert, whe had an
eye to profit as well as plensure, in the following year obtained
the king's charter for a fair and market at his mavor of
Newton. Those were times when it was easier to bring goods
to the customers than for these to go to seek the goods.
Inland trade, we ure told, was then heavily erippled by the
badness and insecurity of the roads, It was a costly day's
journey to ride through the domain of a lord abbet, or an
acred baron—the bridge, the ferry, the hostelry, and the cause-
way across the marshes—had ench its perquisites, and Robert
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therefore showed his prudence by his attempt to obwiate for 1
his retainers and tenants some of these inconveniences. But 1
4

he was at the same time strenuons in asserting and maintain-
ing his rights. Ever since the Domesday Sarvey the church
of Wigan had belonged to the Foe of Makerfield, and when,
in 6 Ed. I, 1278, an attempt was made to deprive him of the
right of patronage of this living, he manfully and suecessfully
resisted it.

At the same time he set himself to reclaim from the Crown
his family inheritance at Prestatyn, and he presented n petition
| in which he boldly set forth his rights. In this attempt,
however, he did not succeed, but the statement of his pedigree
sat forth in the petition has enabled his descendant to frame
the pedigree which has been mentioned before,

But while Robert was thus mindful of his temporal interests
he was not regardless of the spintual wants of Newton. The
advowson of Winwick, within which parish Newton was
situated, belonged to the priory of Nostell, and with the
prior's eonsent Robert seems about this time to have built a
chapel at Rokeden, near his manor house in Newton, aud to
have made ** Roger Clericus de Newton™ itz first priest.
(Gregsan's Fragments, 3422.) 1In 13 Ed, 1, 1284, while
Richard de Wariren (or Waveriree) preﬁided over Nostell,
Robert obtainad his license to have a chantry in his chapel at I
Rokeden, on the ground that Newton was ai an inconvenient
distanea from Winwick ; and of this chantry, which he en-
dowed with £3, 1s, 7d. a year, he made William de Heskayt
the first inenmbent. For the privilege which the prior had
granted him Robert gave “ to God and St, Oswald the king
* an annual rentof xiid. to find a light for St. Mary the Virgin,

“on St Oswald's dav, in the Church at Winwick for ever.”
(Not. Cest., Ohet. So., i, 262.) When the chantry fell at the
Reformation, its endowment of £8. 1s. 7d. was continned, and
became the nuclens of the present endowment of Newton

‘_
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chapel, and thus the fonnder's good deed has reached further
than he ever dreamed of. Thomus Gentill was the chantry
priest in 1312, and William de Rokeden in 22 Ed. IT1, (1549.)
(Lan. Chantries, Chet. Bo., 74, 75,) Henry de Seftun, whe
ovours as o wittess to & Newton charter abont this time, and
who describes himself as bailiff of Makerfield, was probably
Robert Fitz Robert's reeve. A litile later Richard Phyton
was Robert's seneschal, and Richard de Bradshaw his bailifl
at Newion. But from early times there was also a king's
bailiff of the hundred of Newton. Thus, William, Earl of
Boulogne, Moreton, and Warren, son of King Stephen, who
died in 1180, granted the office of king's bailiff of Makerfield
to Walter de Waleton, and King John, in the first year of his
reign, confirmed Henry, the son of Gilbert, the son of Walter,
in the office. In 0 Ed. T, (1292,) when there was a general
questioning of all rights, Richard de Waleton, n descendant
of the first grantee, appeared and successfully maintained his
right to bo the king's bailiff, not only of Newton hundred but
of West Derby also, and to this day the bailiff of Newton is
regularly called nmong the nomina ministrorum at the Lanea-
shire assizes. It was at this time that the burgesses of the
borongh of Wigan shewed their strange notion of justice.
William le Proctor being indicted for stealing a bull, one
Henry Crows, at his request, hecame surety for his appear-
ance, whereupon Proctor was discharged and his suvety was
detained ; and when Proctor failed to give himself up, the
borough hanged the surety aud allowed the principal to escape.
¢ Hist, Lan., iii, 582,) Those wers not the days of Damon
and Pythias,

Robert Fitz Robert Banastre married Alice, the daughter of
Gilbert Woodeock, and was living in 1289, but he died soon
after, leaving his widow surviving. They had issue a son
and a daughter; James, who married Elena, the danghter of
Sir William le Boteler, Baron of Warrington, by whom he

——
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had issue, throngh whom the barony of Newton was trans-
mitted to her descendants, and Clementia, to whom, on her
marriage with William de Lea, her father made a grant of
Mollington Banastre, in Cheshire. James, the heir apparent,
in the direct line of succession, the last male of his housa,
doubtless to his father's great sorrow, was carried to the grave
before him.

Not to interrupt the regular sequence of the barons of
Newton, we stop here, where the line ends in a femasle, to
notice & fow of the Banastres, who, though evidently persons
of note, are not in the direct Newton line of suceession.

One of these, Thomas Banastre, in 1208, was commanded
to raise 2,000 men in Lancashire, and march with them to the
king at Berwick-upon-Tweed, to assist in reducing Wallace,
who had succeeded in rousing his countrymen to rise against
the English. (Hidst. Lan., i, .'.‘,".'iJ.) The Banastre mame
doubtless drew some of the spirited Newton men to join in
this campaign, which proved very disastrons to the English.
Thomas, however, returned home safely, and in 1314 he was
one of the knights of the shire for the ecounty of Lancaster,
an office in which another of his name and lineage, William
Banastre, had served the county ten years before. In 1807,
Riochard Banastre was a burgess in Parlinment, for Preston,
and a little later three of the family were friars at Warrington,
one of whom, Geoffray Banastre, was made prior of the house.
But the story of another of them, Sir Adam Banastre, requires
to be vold a little more at length. He had married the daugh-
ter of Sir Robert de Holland, and bore for his arms, argent,
a cross patonee, sable—arms which were very distinet from
those of the barons of Newton, The times were disorderly, and
Sir Adam greatly forgot his knightly manners, when he, with
six others in his company, fell upon the Prior of Lancaster,
at Poulion, and after having eruelly wounded him and his
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retinue, ecarried all of them off to Thornton, and there threw
them into prison. (Reg. Ste. Marie Lan. MS. and
Hist, Lancaster, 234,) Afterwards, with s view of io-
gratinting himsalf with the king, he raised his standard
against Thomas, Earl of Lancaster, his patron, and profess-
ing an intention to relieve the king from his influenee and
ill practices, he colleoted a foree of 800 men, with which he
entered upon the -earl’s estates, and possessed himmself of the
arms and mousy there laid up for the prosecution of the
Soottish war. Hastily mustering some forces, the earl came
up with his enemy near Preston, when Sir Adam rushed upon
him so fariously that his troops began to give way, but a
reinforcement coming up, Sir Adam, in his turn, was com-
pelled to make a precipitate retreat, when a great number of
his followers were slain, aud he himself was so alomly beset
that, after escaping for a time, he took courage from despair
and rushed boldly on his pursuers, who at last overcame him,
and baving cat off his head sent it to the earl as a trophy.
(Hist. Lan., i, 270.) All this, which took place in the
¢ Ed. 17, (1315,) might formerly be read recorded on a tablet
in Lichfield cathedral. In the windows of Warrington [riary
there were formerly three figures painted in glass, one of
which had » banoer with the nrms of Lancaster, amd was
nndoubtedly meant for Earl Thomas ; snother, with a banner,
bore the arms of Holland, and was as certainly meant for Sir
Robert Holland ; and the third, of which there is a second
representation, hiad no banner, but had an antique shield with
the arms argent and the eross patonce sable upon it, the same
that were horne by both Sir Thomas and 8ir Adam Bannstre,
for one of whom, aud probably for the latter, who had married
Sir Robert Holland's danghter, the figure was intended. But
for which ever of these two knights the portrait was meant, it
probably owed its appearance in the priory window to Geoffrey
Banastre, the prior. ITtwas not a fattering likeness, however,
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for art had not then achieved the triumphs it has since won,
nor had portrait-painting then earned the commendations
since bestowed on it by a Liverpool bard of venerated name,
to whom its Mount Pleasant was a Parnassus :—
"Tis only peinting’s pow'r
Can bring the much lov'd fugnfta lr'mE'. -
' In festures exquisitely true;

The sparkling eye, the blooming facs,

The n{;ape adorned with every grace ;

To nature's saif scarce yiald the doabtful strife

Swell from the deep'ning shade and ask the gift of life,

And again, addressing the same art in another page, he
BAYS 1—

No speotre forms of P]amra flad
Thy softening mellowing tints restore,
But thou can’st give us back the dead,
E'sn in the loveliest looks they wore,

Only one other Banastre, and he the greatest of them all, Sir
Thomas Banastre, an early Enight of the Garter, yet remnins
to be noticed. This knight, the son of a Sir Adsm and Lady
Petronilla Banastre, of Claughton, the heiress of Singleton, did
good service in the engogement against the Spaniards, under the
Earl of Lancaster, and in 1360 he attended the king in his
wars in France. At Bourg la Reine he received knighthood
from the king’s own hand, and then undertook an enterprise of
some daring with the eelebrated Sir Walter Manny before the
barriers of Paris, He next attended the Black Prince, and
in 1366 wok part in the battle of Najara, and the next year,
when the King of France had sent the King of England a
definnce about the Fouage or hearth money, he went with a
force into Aquitaine. In 1369 he led an inroad inte Anjon,
where, having the misfortune to be taken prisover, he was
detained until there was an exchange of prisoners, when he
wae exchanged for the Sire Caponnel de Capoppat. In
2 Richard 11, Sir John Arundel (then marshal of Englaud)

with his “ good knight,” Sir Thomas Bausstre, as Froissart
L)
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calls him, was ordered to conduct an army into Bretagne,
when the fleet being overtaken by a violent tempest was
driven into the Irish Sea, where the ship in which Sir Thomas

was, struck upon a rock and he was drowned on 16th Dee.,
1879. The celebrated Cheshire hero, Sir Hugh Calveley,
who was in the same ship, narrowly escaped ths same fate at
the same time, The Banastre sword which belonged to Sir
Thomas was long preserved and shown at Windsor, as the
relic of a valisut commander and one of the distinguished
Knights of the Order of the Garter. (Beltz Memorials of
that Order, 208.)

After this digression we return to our account of the barons
of Newton.

James Banastre, the son and heir apparent of the last
baron, having, as we have already stated, died without male
issne in the lifs time of his father, the great Fee of Maker-
field, on his father's death, passed to Alice, his only child and
heiress, Whilst still very voung, she was econtracted in .
marriage to John le Byron, the younger, who, in 20 Edward
I, (1892,) pleaded to a guo warranto that he, in her right, was
entitled 1o have free warren in Walton, Newton-in-Makerfield,
and Woolston, and to have infangthief and gallows in Newton ;
but in consequence of its appearing that Alice was under age
the inquiry was adjourned. The two last items of the elaim,
however, give us a glimpse of the extent of the jurisdiction of
the manor conrts of Newton in ancient times. The privilege
claimed by the * gallows” was no less than the right to
execute any criminal convicted of a capital erime in the
manor eourt by the lord’s own official and on his own gallows
tree, This privilege was exercised by the Baron of Kinderton
by his hanging one Stringer, convieted of muorder in his
court, 80 late as the time of Queen Elizabeth, and a croft
in Newton still preserves the memory of the place where
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its fatal tree onee stood. John le Byron's marriage appears
to have been void either for want of Alice’s consent when
ghe oame of sge, or by reason of his own oearly denth,
(History of Lancashire, Harland's edition,) It was not
thonght fit, however, that n great inheritance won with the
sword should rest in a distaff, and Alice's hand and lands
were soon afterwsrds sold by Edmund Croochback, Earl
of Laneaster, to Johu, son of Robert de Langeton, of West
Langeton, in Leicestershire, for 250 marks, who thus, in her
right, became Baron of Newton and Lord of the Fee of
Makerfield, and on the earl’s death soon afterwards John
and Alice were found to have held under him one knight's
foe in Lancashire. The honour of the Fee of Makerfield,
which had been sustained for two centuries by one great house,
suffered no diminution in passing to another, the house of
Langton. Under Alice’s new name we are reminded of one
of England’s greatest men, Cardinal Langton, who threw the
shield of the Church over the secular arm which extorted
from King John the charter of our liberties at Rannymede.
Little did Pandulph know the metal of his man when he
made it a special article of charge against the king that he
did—
Foree perforce,
Keap Btephen Langton, chosen Archbishop
Of%.nmerbury. from that holy sec.
King Jolin, Aot iii, Seane 1,

And as linle did Pope Innocent know the service he was
rendering when he so vehemently insisted that the king
should enthrome the cardinol, but he plainly saw his error
afterwards when he as vehemently insisted on his being
deposed.

Stephen had a brother Simon, who, about 1218, was elected
Archbishop of York ; but the pope, who had then learned to
kuow the Langtons better, set aside the election. In 1204
another of the name, William Langton, being eleeted Arch-
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bishop of York, another pope, who had inherited a dread of
the Langton name, set aside his election also,

But notwithstanding the papal antipathy the fame of the
Langtons had suffered no diminution when Alice entored into
the family. Her husband’s brother, who singularly enough
was called like himself, John, was Bishop of Chichester and
Lord High Chancellor of England, while Walter Langton, who
was probably her husband's eousin, filled the see of Lichfield,
and was at that time busy in changing Upholland church,
near Wigan, from a eollege to a Benedictine priory. (Hise.
Lane., ili, 538,) Alice's husband, who was knighted by
the hononr-giving hand of Edward I, obtained, through his
brother's inflaence, on the l4th February, 20 Edward I,
(1800,) a charter of confirmation and enlargement of the grant
made to his ancestor of markets, fairs, and free warren at
Newton and other places. The new charter expressly grants
Sir John a weekly market, on Thursday, at Walton-le-Dale,
with a three days' fair there vearly, on the eve, the day,
and the morrow of 8t. Luke; and also a weekly market at
Newton on Saturday, and two yearly fuirs of three days each,
one on the eve, the day, and the morrow of St. John ante
portam Latiram (0th May), and the other on the eve, day,
and morrow of St. Germanus the Confessor (31st July);
and also of free warren in Newton, and the demesnes of
Lowton, Golborne, and Walton-le-Dale. It is observable
that neither of the Nowton fairs is now held on the charter
day, but each is held eleven days later, which is the result of
the change of style in the last sentury, when the people seem
to have kept superstitiously to the original day, ns if that
and that only could be the saint's snniversary. To all fairs
thers is incident what i3 called a court of pie powder, and 1
extract from a record of such a court, held at New Sarum,
this curious incident to show the extent of the court’s power.
At this court, held in the Canong’ Close in Whitsun-week,
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in the 35th year of the king's reign, Clement Slegge was
attached by his body for picking the pocket of one John
Thomas, of London, eapper, of an scoount beok; and the
said Clement being charged with the offence und being unable
10 disprove it, was sdjudged to stand in the pillory for two
hours during the fair, which punishment he accordingly
underwent, (Madox's Formulare dnglic., p. 18.)

Sir John and dame Alice Laugton, on 29th April, 82 Ed.
I, (1304,) lovied a fine of all their lands in Walton-le-Dale,
Newton, snd Lawton, and the sdvowson of the church of
Wigan, and by it they settled all those lands upon themselves
for life, with remainder to the heirs of the samid Sir John,
born of the body of the said Alice, with remainder to her
right heirs for ever.

On the 11th April, 11 Edward IT, (1318,) as if to secure
Sir John to lus side in the views he was then meditating,
Thomas, Earl of Lancaster, granted him an inspeximus and
confirmation of Henry de Laocy's ancient charter to Robert
Buanustre.

Alice, Sir John's young wife, was eertainly living in 1304,
but she was as certainly dead before 18 Edward 11, (1325,)
when Robert de Holland's lands wers expressly fonnd to be
held under her surviving husband.

On the 2nd July, 6 Edward I1T, 1832, Sir John, by a deed
in Norman French, appointed his reeve, Richard de Newton,
bis nttorney, to give Gilbert de Haydoc seisin of ten acres in
Newton wood ; and the Langton seal to this deed bears the
original arms of the Langtons of West Langton.

It was in Sir John's time that William le Gentyl, the most
irregular of Launcashire sheriffs, being ordered to make
return to Parliament of two knights of the shire, returned of
his own suthonty, sud without consulting the county, Gilbert
de Haydoe, one of Sir John's near neighbours, and with him
another person, to be such knights, and paid them £20 for
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their expenses, whereupon the county lodged a threefold
complaint against him ; first, that he had made the return of
his own will and without their assent ; secondly, that he had
paid Gilbert and his colleague £20, while as good men might
have been found for £10, or even for ten marks ; and thirdly,
that his bailiffs had levied as much money for their own use
as they bad paid the knights. The resl gravamen of the
complaint was that the sheriff had over-rated the value of
the services of his iwo nominees. (Hist. Laneashire, i,
300-1.)

In Bir John Langton's time also thers occurred at Newton
an event which has obtained more notice than almost any
other of its loeal cirenmstances. In the early years of
the reign of Edward II, Sir Willinm Bradshaw, of Haigh, a
great traveller and soldier, having left his bome, remained
abroad so long without any tidings being heard of him that
he was given up for dead, and his wife took to herself a
second husband, a certain Welsh knight. After o time,
however, it happened that Sir William returned, in a palmer's
habit, und eame amongst the poor to his own gate, where
being recognised by his wife, she wept over him tears of jov,
for which the Welsh knight took upon him to chastise her,
whereupon 8ir William made himself known to his tenants, and
the Welsh knight huving wisely consulted his safety by flight,
Sir Willinm followed and overtook him near Newton Park,
and there slew him upon a stone called “ the Bloody stone,”
which has ever since been said to retain marks of the Welsh
knight’s blood. To atone for her share as the innocent cause
of this offence, Mabel, Sir William's widow, founded a chantry
in Wigan chureh, to which the first priest was presented in
1328, and about a mile from it erected the eross ealled Mab's
cross, from which she vowed to walk barefoot once a year
to the chantry by way of penance.

Sir John de Langton, who had two sons, Robert and John,
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must have died abont the 7 Edward III, (1884,) for in the
following year we find his son Sir Rebert in possession of the
barony of Newton. He married Margaret, who is thought to
bave been a daughter of Willinm, son of Henry de Orrell, for
in |4 Edward IIT, (1340,) some of the Orrell estates seem Lo
have been settled on him and his wife and their issue. The
next vear he had a license to embatile [ kermeilare ) his house
at Newton. This house, the site of which now lies buried
beneath the railway embankment, stood on the rock above the
brook, & little to the north of the present pioturesque old hall
at Newton. Its moat, which had been cut out of the solid
rock, was perfeot until the railway, with its iron heel, rushed
over it, and boried it beneath a high mound, whieh, if it had
been thrown up in front of the house in an earlier age, would
have been its best defence ngainst a surprise, (Not. Cest,,
Chet. So., 278. Notes and Queries, ix, 220, 270.) In 18486,
Sir Robert, who was serving under the king in his French
wars, probably shared in the glories of the great day at
Cresoy, for at the siege of Calais, shortly afterwards, be was
knighted, and probably there witnessed a dromatic incident, the
humble submission of the men of Calais, and heard the queen
graciously interceding for their pardon, About this time
there occur several Newton charters, some of which prove the
times to have been very simple. They mention John the
shepherd, Thomas the herdsman, and John the serjeant
{serviens), who, I suppose, was the lord's bailiff or reeve.
All these were employments of duty or business; but John
the piper, who was a minister of pleasure, is also mentioned.
His performance, which had not much music in it, was
probably much like that which Benedick says the recreant
Clandio had learned to love:

I have known when there was no muosie with him but the drum and
fife, and now he would mueh rather hear the tabor and pipe,

Much Ade About Nothing.
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This music, which was sufficient to mark time, had little
else to recommend it, and at many o village ball this now
antiquated instrument formed the whole band within times of
living memory.

Iu 13486, the king, being sbout to meke the Black Prince,
his eldest son, a knight, levied an aid for that purpose, to
which Sir Robert was sssessed ot half a kmight's fee for his
West Langton lands.

Bir Robert died on Sunday before the feast of 8t. Miohael,
20th September, 85 Edward ITI, (1861,) leaving three sons,
John, Richard, and Robert. Richard probably became
Rector of Wigan, Robert became s serviens ad arma,
and took Hindley and the original paternal property in
Leicestershire, with a carncate of land at Hendon in Middle-
sex, while the barony of Newton and Walton-le-Dale devolved
upen his grandson Ralph, the son of his son Jehn, whe had
died in his lifetime.

Sir Ralph Langton, in 1367, obtained the bishop's license
to have nn oratory for three years in his manor house at New-
ton, (Not. Cest., Chet. So., i1, 2872) ; and in 1870, he pre-
sented his clerk, James Langton, tv the living of Wigan, In
10 Richard IT, when he was 45 years old, he was examined
in the frinry at Warrington as g witness in the celebrated suit
of arms between Serope and Grosvenor, and gave évidence in
favour of the latter.

Sir Ralph, probably in consequence of feeling the approach
of nge, on the 12th Dee., 1405, obtained a renewal and con-
firmation of his privilege of & chantry at Rokeden, which
must have been near his hounse, and he had the bisliop's further
gongent to have divine offices celebrated before him nnd other
faithful christians at Rokeden in his chapel there, without any
burden upon the mother church.  Net. Cest., Chet. 8o, ii,
272.) Itwas sbout this time that Joln Dauke left to William
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Langton, his spiritual father, to whom he was attached, the
use for hus life of & book (wmins &bry) which Richard le Seroop
carried in his bosom when he was behended, supplicating
him to cause the said book after his decease to be chained
near the place where the said Richard's bedy lay, there to
remain for ever. [ Whitaker's History Whalley, 484.)
On the same principle & copy of the Koran is placed in
the tomb of the Sultan Tayloon in his noble mosque at
Cuairp, .

. Bir Ralph, who married Joan the daughter of William de
Radeliffe, died in or about 7 Hen. IV, (1406,) leaving his wifes
surviving, who was still living in 8 Hen, V, (1420,) They had
geveral children, of whom the eldest,

Hexngy Laxarox, esquire, succeeded to the barony of New-
ton. He married Agnes, the dsaghter of John de Davenport,
and died 14th Sept., ¥ Hen. V, (1414,) leaving his wife sarviv-
ing. He was succeeded by his eldest son,

Sir Raren Laxceros, knight, who married o wife named
Alice, and died 6th Feb., 1481, leaving her surviving. Sir
Ralph was sucoeeded by his son Henry, who was 12 years old
at his father's death.

Hexny LaxcTon, esquire, baron of Newton, married Eliza-
beth, and died 13th Sept,, 1471, leaving his wife, who died
17th Nov., 1472. Sir Richard Langton, his eldest son, who
next succeeded to the baromy, marched to the north with the
Duke of Gloucester, afterwards Richard I1T, and Lord Stanley,
nnd was made s banneret by the latter at Hutton Field in
1482. The Lancashire men were much mixed up with this
march to the north, and upon it the Duke of Gloucester,
according to tradition, slept at Bradley, near Newton ; but
between his and Lord Stanley's party some jealousy at last
broke out, and there was a skirmish at Salford, in which the
Duke’'s banner was taken, possibly by one of the Langton

1
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party, sinee it was hung up as o trophy in Wigan cburch, and
a ballad was made about it, which began thus%—

Jack of Wigan, be did take
The Duko of Gloucesier's banner,
And hung it up in Wigan ehureh,
A monnment of honour,

(Hualgted's Richard (11, vol, ii, 07.)

Sir Ricmanp Laseros married lIsabella, the daughter of
8ir Thomas Gerard, of Bryn, and died on 23rd August, 1500,
leaving Ins wife surviving. He was succeeded by his eldest
s0m,

Rarra Laxoron, who married Joan, the daughter of Sir
Christopher Southworth, and dying on 28th July, 1503, was
sneceeded by his son Ricmarp, who dying under age, was
followed by his younger brother,

8ir Taomas Laserox, who married Elizabeth, the daughter
of Lord Monteagle, the hero of Flodden, to whom the wardship
of the heir of the barony had been granted by his mother, Tn
his day, the antiquary Leland, who visited Newton, thus de-
seribes it :—* Newton, on & hrook, a little poor market, whereof
“ Mr. Langton has the name of his barony."t In 1533 Newton
was ordered to find four of the armed men who were to be
provided by Winwick parish ; and in 1557 Sir Thomas Langton
received orders to command fifty men of the Lancashire force
ordered to be raised to resist the Scots. (Hist. Whalley, 538.)
In 1556 he filled the office of high sheriff of Lancashire, and
in 1557 he served the same office again. In neither of these
years were the times quiet, and Sir Thomas no doubt found
his office as onerous ns honourable. In the year 15568 he
obtained for Newton, by charter from the queen, the right to
send two burgesses to parliament. Sir Thomas was the

* In the Cola MSS, British Museom, another version of the ballad ssys—
Juek Morris of Wigan brought the Duke's banner
Ta Wiggnn lirk, it served there forty year.

¢ In 2 Ed. VI, (1648,) John Dunster, aged 40, was the priest of the Newten
chanlry.—(Lan. Chantriee, T4, 75.)
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owner of nearly the whole borough, and lus steward was the
roturning offiser, and if he had so pleased he might have
nominated lnmeell 1o be one of the members, but he does not
segm o have done so, and as he did not sit for any other
place, he perhops did not covet parliamentary honours, In
the parlimment of 1668 and 1550 Newton was represented by
Sir George Hazard, koight, snd Richard Chetwode, esquire,
and in that of 1568 by Francis Alford and Ralph Browne,
esquires. We know nothing of these persons. Let us hope,
thervefore, that they were selected by Sir Thomas, honestly, on
publie, and not on privatg grounds; but the newness of the
queen'’s reign and the unsettled state of the times may have
indoced Bir Thomas in sending them to gratify the gqueen in
the way mentioned in Clarendon’s State Papers. (. 02 o.
Hume's Hist., v. 9, note.)

Elizabeth, the first wife of Sir Thomns Langton, having
died before him, he then married Anne, sometimes called
Anne Slater, the daughter of Thomas Talbot, 0 younger son
of John Talbot of Salebury. 8ir Thomas died on the 14th
of April, 1560, leaving dame Anne, his widow, surviving him,
and by his will, dated the 4th of April preceding, in which
he ealls himeelf “ Thomas Lungton, of Walton-in-le-Dale, in
** the county of Lancaster, knight, Baron of Newton,” after
reciting o deed bearing date the 4th Angust, 5 and 6 Philip
and Mary, (1558,) being o settlement of his great possessions
in many different places, and reciting how the same were
disposed of by it, he directed his body to be buried smongst
his ancestors, in the chancel of the church of Walton-la-Dale,
towards repuiring which chureh he gave the sum of £30,
His eousin [grandson] Thomas Langton, was to have his
gold chain and a standing silver cup with the gilt cover,
wherenpon was graven the word * heirloom,” his greatest
silver goblet und eover, one silver cup with the eover parcel
gilt, made after the fashion of a glass, his silver piece pounced,

12
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(a box like Hotspur's * poumcet-box,”) one pounced silver
plate, one silver drinking-cup with two handles, two of his
best silver gilt salts and their covers, one dozen of the best
silver spoons, one of them gilt; one silver piece, two great
brazen pots in the kitchen, one great copper pan ; with a wain,
plough, and all other instruments belonging to husbandry,
und all his harness and armour. And afterwards, amongst
many other legacies to his servants and others, he gave to
E. Righton, in recompense of her wages for long service, £40,
To his priest, Thomas Edmundson, he gave an annuity of
40s, for four yenrs, and to his exeeutors, during four years,
£6. 13s. 4d., which is expressed to be for & remembrance of
him * when he was gone.” (Lan. and Ches. Wills, Chet.
Soe., part ii, 246.)

Sir Thomas Langton was succeeded by his grandson, another
Thomas, the son of his youngest son, Leonard Langton,
who, under the settlement of 1558, took the fumily estates
us tepsnt in tail. Like his grandfather, he seems, for the
greater part of hLis life, to have been content with nominating
others to represent the borough of Newton in Parltament,
without seeking to take that honour upon himself. In the
year 15371, the pope having issued his bull of exeommunicn-
tion ngainst the queen, in which, mistaking bis power, he idly
affected to deprive her of the crown and to absolve her
subjects from their allegiance, ouve Felton, who had been
bold enough to affix the bull to the gates of the Bishop of
London's palace, obtained by it what he probably desired and
certainly deserved, the crown of martyrdom, for he was
immediately seized and put to death as & traitor. Parlinment,
which had not met for five years, was now called together; it
being thonght proper that the nation should mark its sense of
the pope’s atiempted outrage upon the queen and the consti-
tution. (Hume's Hist. Eng., v, 172.) This Parliament met
on the 8rd of April, 1871, and Newton was represented in it
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by Anthony Mildmey and Thomas Stoneley, esquires, its two
burgesses. The first of these burgesses was probably one of
the Northamptonshire family. (Colling' Peerage, iii, 204.)
But we have not discovered who the second was or how he
was connected with Newton.,

On the 38xd April, 1678, dame Anne Langton, the widow
of the late Sir Thomas, made her will, by which, amongst
other legacies, she gave the erucifix of gold which she was
accustomed to wear about her meck to her cousin William
Ffaryngton. She left £20 to ber deughter, Katheryn Langton,
which she says she owed her, but she mentions no others of
the name. The will was proved in the following June, and
to it there is attached a long and very minute inventory of
her effects. (Lan. and Ches. Wills, Chet. Soc., part iii, 58.)

On the summoning of a new pardiament in the following
vear, 1574, the burgesses for Newton were John Gresham,
Esq., nnd John Savile, Esq., of whom the latter was probably
a barrister, and the person of his name, whoin 1508 was made
Baron of the Exchequer.

In 1577 a parliament was held, which after sitting long
had done so little that the gqueen, addressing the speaker,
Popham, at its close, said, * Mr. Speaker, what have you
“ passed ?” to which he naively replied, * Please your majesty,
“ five weeks.” It is to be regretted that the members for
Newton were not present to hear this paseage of wit.

In the year 1584, the queen's rule being threatened with
copspiracies, she ealled n new parliament, to which Newton
sent Robert Langton, Esq., of Lowe, o collateral relation of
the baron of Newton, and Edward Savage, as their burgesses ;
and in 1586, when the queen was again threatened, the same
members were again returned. But in the following year,
which was that of the Spanish armada, a change was made,
and Edmund Trafford, Esq., of Trafford, and Robert Langton,
Fsq., of Lowe, were returned to represent Newton.
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In the night of the 20th and 21st Nov,, 32 Eliz,, (1589,
in consequence of some eattle of widow Singleton's being
impounded by Mr. Hoghton, of Lea hall, between Preston
and Kirkham, Mr. Langton of Walton, the Baron of Newton,
assembled his retniners, to the number of eighty, and with them
gallied out against Mr. Hoghton, and being met by the lntter
at the head of about thirty of his followers, a regular enguge-
ment ensned, in which Mr, Hoghton and William Bawdwen,
one of Mr. Langton's peopls, were slain, and he himself,
grievously wounded, was carried off the field to Brougliton
tower. For this offénce the Baron of Newton and others were
indicted, and while they lay in prison awaiting their trial the
Earl of Derby, then Lord Lieutenant of the County, wrote a
letter to Lord Burleigh, in which he siated that, moved by the
earnest desires of a number of poor men, his sense of duty to
her majesty, and foresecing some danger likely to ensue to
the county, he thinks fit to sequaint his lordship with a
tronblesome canse hetween My, Baron of Walton,* and Mr.
Houghton. He informs him * that the gentlemen were
“ opnly in peril of burning in the hand, while the poorer and
“less guilty offenders were in much more dapger;” and he
entreats Lord Burleigh to obtain for them o pardon befors the
assizes, since many of them could not read, and were there-
fore likely to lose their lives without her majesty’s most
gracious favour., He points his lordship’s attention to the
fact, “ that the better sort of the offenders were so great in
“ kindred and affinity, and so stored with friends, that if they
““ghould be burnt in the hand there would grow oot of it a
“great and ceaseless quarrel ;" and he ends by suggesting
“ that the parties should be subjected to banishwent for a
* time, a8 the safest and best eourse to satisfy Loth sides.”

* Walton-le-dale being the principal residence of the barons of Newion, they
wers fraquently gpoken of e barons of Wallon ; but though a superior lordshiy,

with jurisdiction over five nppurtensnt manors, it wae not o barony,  This lord-
aliip elected its own coromer,
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We are startled to think of the inequality of punishment
here deseribed as existing in those days, and we are not less
surprised to find a lord-lientsnant writing to interfere with
the course of justice, after a riot which had embroiled the
county.

It daes not appear what was the rvesult of the lord-lieute-
nant's letter, but the Baron of Newton surrendered his lord-
ship of Walten-le-dale to Mr, Hoghton's family, and made
his peace with this weregeld after the aneient fashion of the
Saxon times. In the parlisment called in 1502 to grant the
queen a subsidy towards the expenses of the government,
Edmund Trafford and Robert Langton, esquires, were again
returned as members for Newton. It was in this parlinment
that, in reply to the speech of the speaker, Sir Edward Cuke,
making the usoal three requests, of freedom from arrests, of
aceess.to her majesty's person, and of free liberty of speech,
that the queen, by the mouth of Puckering, the lord keeper,
told him that ** they (the honse) must know what was the
“liberty they were entitled to, that it was not a liberty for
* every one to speak what he listeth, or what eometh into his
*“brain to utter ; for that their privilege extended no further
“than a liberty of aye or no.” The members for Newton
probably sat patiently to hear the lord kesper give Bir Edwand
this rebaff, which he had brought upon himself by his obse-
quiousness in the speech in which he aunouneed Lis election,
*This," said he, * iz only & nomination and no election, until

““ your majesty giveth allowance and approbation.” (2 Has-
sell, 154.)
About this time, for some reason which we cannot explain,
unless it be the plea of concesled lands, the Flestwoods, Sir
Thomas Langton’s kinsmen, had made an assignment of their
reversion: of the Langlon estates to the queen; buat in the
'i your 1584, they entered into an agreement with him to revoke
wnd make void soeh assignment, and by a deed of the 15th

_



120

July, in that vear, and n fine levied in pursuance of it, Sir
Thomas, desaribing himself as of Wulton-le-Dale and Baron
of Newton, settled the barony, manor, and ssigniory of New-
ton, with all courts, markets, fairs, liberties, and franchises,
and the nomination, election, and appointment of two bur-
gesses Lo parlinment, which had been used by the baron, lord,
or owner of the said barony, and after snch elestion made to
be semt to the parliament as burgesses for the borough of
Newton, and all manors, messuages, lands, and hereditaments
in Newton, Lawton, Leigh, Penyngton, Makerfield, Eocles
alias FEgresfield, Golborne, Kenyon, Crofte, Southworth,
Middleton, Arbury, Houghton, Fearnhead, Poulton, Woolston,
Hulme, Winwick, Haydoe, Ashton, Pemberton, Orrell, Billinge,
Wynstanley, Ince, Hindley, and Abram, within the fee of
Maukerfield, or in the parishes of Warrington, Winwick, and
Wigan (except the ndvowson of the rectory of Wigan, and all
messunges theretofore used in severalty in Lawton, and the
tenements and Iand thereto belonging, in Wigan aforesaid),
to the nee of Sir Thomas himself for life, with remainder to
the use of his first and other sons sunccessively in tail male,
with remainder to the use of Thomas Fleetwood, esquire, of
Calwich, in the county Stafford, and his heirs for ever ; and in
return Thomas Fleetwood on his part engaged to revoke the
assignment which he had made to the queen of the Langtons'
reversions,

On the 24th Oetober, 1697, when the queen’s necessitivs
agnin obliged her to call a parlinment, the only member re-
turned for Newilon wes their old member Robert Langton,
esquire, of Lowe.

In the year 1601 Sir Thomas Langton for the first time
chose to have himself returned as one of the members for his
own horough, having for his eolleagne Richard Ashton, gentle-
mio, Who this person was we have not discovered. It wasin
this purliament that the queen gained great popularity by giving
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up part of her prerogative, the privilege of granting monopo-
lies, when the parliament in raturn for it, besides granting her
n subsidy to repay the expense she hnd been st in her Irish
wars, returned her their most grateful thanks, In the year
1603, soon after the accession of the new king, Sir Thomas
Langton was created a Knight of the Bath, and he died on
the 20th of February, 1604. The inquisition, taken four
years after his death, says that he died nt Newton, but this
differs from the aecount given in the following tablet to his
memory, which, after having been first set ap in Wigan church,
was nfterwards, for some reason of which we are not aware,
removed to Duxbury hall :—

T OBRLIVION.

And y* troe bones of Sir Thos. Langton, of y¢ Hanble, Order of
y* Bathe, knight baron of Newton in Mukerfield, y° Inst of his name,
und y# nndoubted patron of this ehureh, descended from & most
anciont, fumous, and furre renowned fumily of Langton, in Leicestor-
shire, who sometimes wore of great anthority both in y* ehurel and
commonwealth of this kingdome, and for the space of 300 yeres have
flonrishad in this county. A gentloman y* muny times tugged with
cxtremityes and made warre with y* worst of misfortunes, &e. He
departed this lief in yo oitty of Westminster 20th Febroary, 1604,
when he had lived 44 yores, und lyes buried nere yo high altar in 8t
Peter's Chuarch adjoyning to v* Abbay.

The author of Westminster Addey mnkes no mention of
Sir Thomas's burial there, and as be had done nothing teo
deserve such an honour, it is plain that the abbey had not
then beeome, what it is now, the national mausoleum.

Sir Thomas Langton was twice merried, first to Margaret,
the danghter of Richard Sherburne, Esq., of Stonyhurst, but
the contract for this marriage having been made in infancy,
and not afterwards ratified, was set aside, and Siv Thomas,
about the year 1576, married Elizabeth, the second daughter
of Sir.John Savage, of Olifton, but he left no issue by either
of his wives. Sir Thomas by the tragedy ut Lea had lost his
great lordship of Walton-le-dale, and his death without issne
eansing & break in the direct line of suceession, now lost his

_
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family amother, the great barony of Newton: and it with the
rest of that large inheritance which three centuries ago had
come to the Langtons by one heiress was now to pass out of
it by another.

At this change in the nnme of the baronial honse we panse
to notice shortly the appearance of another great family
which first came to Newton towards the end of the reign of
Queen Elizabeth. Abont this time, probably by purchase
from the Langtons, the Blackburnes became the owners of an
estate in Newton, and soon afterwards built there the vener-
able mansion, which is still standing, ealled Newton Hall.
Richard Bleekburne, Esq., the builder of the house, who was
first of Scorton Hall, and afterwards of Newton, married
Jane, the daughter of John Aynsworth, of that place. Mr.
Blackburne not only built his own honse, but he helped
to maintain public worship in another and stll nobler house,
the church at Newton, by giving the large sum of lwo
hundred ponnds towards the better support and endowment
of the minister. The extensive front of the new hall at
Newton was flanked by wide projecting gables at its two ends,
and a smaller one in the centre, through which was the great
entrance into the house.  The foundations and corners of the
houso were of solid brickwork, and the upper part, which
was of timber and plaster, was coloured black and white, in
an agreenble geometrical pattern. Each story of the house
had long rows of Leavy mullioned windows, which were
contrived as if on purpose to let in light by stealth, and
prevent marauders from entering in the sume manner. A
donbla-barred and well smdded onk door bore the same pro-
tective ohnrnoter as the windows, while n moat added to the
impression - that the times were pot very settled when the
house was built, of which the recent tragedy at Lea was a
proof, Entering through the porch, the stranger fonnd him-
solf in a great hall, furpished with a long solid cak table,
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at which the master dined with his family, retainers, and
servants, and at one side, lighted by a window filled with the
family nrms, was the grand staircase leading to a gallery
which ran round the hall, and from whiech was the entrance
to the upper rooms, while the queen's arms wers emblazoned
oversthe mantelpiece, supported on one side by the lion of
England, and on the other by the winged dragon of the honse
of Tudor, and surrounded by the Garter motto *“ Honi soit
qui_mal y pease” This pictaresque house, which is
happily still standing, nod has many assoointions with the pnst,
seldom fails to attract the attention of travellers who see it
from the station at Newton Bridge. Richard Blackburme,
the builder, was worthily succeeded by his eldest son,
Thomas Blackburne, who was born at Newton Hall, in
the year 1605, and was married at Grappenball Church,
by dispensation, in April, 1626, to Margaret Norris, the
descendant of an ancient Laneashire fumily, who settled in
Orford soon after the Conquest. One of Margaret's ancestors
had heen Master of the Ordnonee to Henry VI, which may
have stimulated her husband to acquire the skill in arcliery
for which he became fmmous nt a time when the bow as a
weapon was fast falling into disuse. Dut Thomas Blackburne
had a reputation for more and bewter things than archery,
He was deservedly esteemed as a lenrned mun, add te which
he was certainly a pious and devout one, its we know from o
eurious volume of his diary, which he kept in eypher—

That, save bis own, no eye should ere behold it

Im this book, which is a diary of exactly twelve months, from
14th Oer., (G634, to the 12¢h Oct., 16835, and which is probubly
uu|}' one of o ]r:ng sories, lie lins written down his immost
thoughts, meditntions, and prayers every day, and seareely on
any day has he neglectad to hold inward communings with
his soul, or to eall himself to a strict account for his short-
comings in moral and divive things. He frequently mentions
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his wife Margarct, and ons day he speaks of her as having
alighted *“at daylight gate,” n phrase which Mr. Halliwell
says menns twilight. The word “ Amen " at the end of his
prayers proved the key to unlock the writer's aypher, The
Blackburnes finally removed to Orford and Hale, where
happily they still continue, and it is to be hoped will long
continne in honour,

DEVICES AND ARMORIAL BEARINGS OF THE BARONS
OF NEWTON AND OF THEIR KINDRED,

Fig. | —Frogment of n seal of Worin Banastre, son of Roberi
Bannstre, and heir to his bhrother
Richard, who died 28rd April, 1206,
This seal, appended to & grant in
“ Waletonn," to one Alured, is
amongst the muniments of the Leghs
of Lyme, which have supplied most
of the seals here engraved.

Fig. 2.—The deed to which this
spal is appended being without date,
it is nneertain whether it was used
by the son or by the grandsen of
Thurstan, brother and sucecssor Lo

~—= Warin, both of whom bora the name
-t of Robert.

These seals bear the deviee of dorsers [paniers)
which have been by some ealled water Lougets.
Thisdevive nppesrs as a charge in the arms of
Banesters of Darwen, in the Visitation of 15807,
viz, sable, two dossers joined in fess, argent;
on u chief, grles, three feur-de-lis, or, An ancient
cont of this family is also there recorded as argent,
a water bouget botween fonr Aenrde-lis, sable,

Philip de Orreby, justice of Chester, who
had the wardship of Thurstun Buaunastee's heir,
bore u cont ermine, chargied with five cheyronale,
iiles.  The inference that Clementin, wife of Bobert Fitz Thurstan,
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was his daughter, receives confirmation from the cireumstance that
after this allianes we find
the Bansstres using o cont
of three chevrons.

The tincturés were re-
versed, as shown by the
Roll of Arms of the reign
of Edward 11, edited by
Sir Nicholas Harris Nigo-
las, p. 89 :—

W Sire Willinm Banastre,
Fig. . “de goules n iij cheverons de mrgent.”

The dates of the deeds to whiek the two seanls (Figs. 3, 4) iu the
margin were attached prove them to have been
used by the last Robert Banastre, son of Clementia,

Fig. 6. =—John, son of Robert de Langeton, Lord
of the Manor of West
Langeton in the connty
of Leicester, who mar-
ried Aljge, grand-daugh-
ter and leiress  of
Robert Banastre, sealed
with a shield vair ; pro-

Fig. & bably dorived, either
through kindred or affection, from that
of Marmion, under which funily some of
s property was beld.

By lis son, Robert de Langeton, the arms of the two fnmilies were
borne amalgamated. (Figs 0, 7, 8.

7,
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Figs. 8, 10, 11.—The seals drawn in the margin are those of Hobert,
the second Barem of the
line of Langton and of
Muorguret his wife. Thoy
were appended lo inden-
tures made in the [hth
yenr of the reign of Ed-
ward IIT. ‘The charge of
the mrms impaled is obli-
terated. Tt may probably
have been o spread eagle,
whiel after this time eame Flg. I

into use in the fumily.

Randle Holme records in & window at Wigan Church an impaled
sodt, on the dexter side, argent, three chevrons gules 3 on the sinister,
argent, an eagle displayed with two heads eers,
beaked and legged or, This coat was probebly
derived from Orrel, for in the preceding nceount
of the descents of the Langton family, it is
shewn that thers was, about this date, an alli-
ance with that of OFrel, aud there was found
nmongst the muniments at Tymo the seal of
William, son of Richard de Orel, 13 Edward [,
a8 here represented,

The Langtons of Lowe, Lords of the Mador of
Hindley, were the desceudants of Bobert, the second son of the before.
numed Robert, and on their line the paternal estate in Leicestershire,
with other property, was settled.

Fig. 12 reprezents the seal of Jolin de Langton,
the secomd of this line, rather defaced, but known
to hinve borne nn eagle displeyed, from the deed
of 42 Ed. ITI, to
which it was affixed,
having been eopled
with its seal. [ide
Harl. MBS, e. 20124,

Fig. 13.—A soal
of the same, He
nged several devices;
ona has the appenr-
ance of @ trophy, another is a bird of prey, with a smaller bird in its talons.

Flig. &

Pig. 11,
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Fig. 17.—Ralph, the grandsen sud suscsssor of Robert (he second
Baron of this line of Langton, aban.

48

Edavrir
ADISE L

Fig: 17

doned the bordure of the paternal
wrms, and sealed with & coat of three

chevrons  only.
The tineturés had
bean  roversed
again when used
by the Langtons,
the field being
argent, the ehev-
rousgules, (Holl
af drmaof Knights
at the Biege of
Calys. j

Fig. 18 —Im-

Fig. 18

pression of the signet ring of Ralph, grandson of the foregoing, to an
English deed, 6th May, 1427, from the muniments at Trafford.

Fig. 19.—His grandson, Richard, sealed, in the
19th Edward IV, with the device of n palican
vulngrant. The ring is in existence. It was
turned up on the point of & plonghsbare somp
years ago, in Bripdle, a township contignous to

Fig. 19,

Walton-le-Dale, It hes a le-
gend engraved inside the ring,
“ e poy coER,"

Fig. 20.—8eal of 8ir Thomas
Lungton, who marded, first,
the daugbter of Lord Mont
engle, and sevond, the daugh-
ter of Thomas Talbot

Fig. 21.—Arms of Langton,
Baron of Newton, given in the Visitation of 1567.

Fig. 20

In the original

edition of Fregson’s Fragments ond with the pedigree in Bainess
History of Lancashire, the orest is improperly representod by two
figures on the wreath, Some copies of the Visitation of 1507 baving
given the erest us seen both in profile and in foll face, probably led

Lo this error.

In Grofton's MS the figure is ropresented as undraped, though

J
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wearing o headdress and necklace, wane & M8, swd to nave been

copied from one of the time

{Harl, MSB, cod. 2070), gives the female
bust, proper, with head tire, or, between two
wings erect, argemt. At Wooton Lodge
where this crest appears over the quarterly
cont of Plestwood and Langton, the garmeni

is ont squnre on the breast.

ol Edward 1V,

The seeond
und third guar
tors are doubt
less intendedlor
Bannstre, un-
der the impres
gion that the

chavrons repre-
sented the pa
ternal eoat of Langton ; but, as we have
sgeny mbove, they were derived from
Banastre, 'Uhe eross patonee sable never
nppears to hiave beon borne by the Barons

Pig- 91

of Newton, but to have been used by

the junior line of Banastre, sestled in
Leylond Hunpdred. The Visitation of
1589 gives the Banastre quarier as a
eross moline, but the engraving in the
margin (fig. 22) of Bir Thomas Ba-

pastre's garler plate in St

Chapel, Windsor, shows that the chinvge
in his arms was a oross patones.

Fig. 28.—Willinm Langton, Recorder
of Liverpool snd M.P. for Preston in
the Long Paclinment, was the eldest
son of Hoger Langton of Broughton
Tower. He bore, on the authority of
William Riley, Norroy in the time of
the Commonwealth, party per pale,
argent nnd or, three chevrons, gules,
with the crest of a Talbot sejant regur-

daut, suble, the eawrs argent
K

George's

All the Wi
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Apts of the College of Arms during the Commouwesith being made
void at the Restoration, Dugdale cancelled these arms at the Visitation
of 1604, snd substituted these in the margin, where the sucient
paternal goat is revived in the canton,

This family is now represented by Mr. William Langton, of
Liverpaol.

Latghon Anns kod Crast, earved on i mantel-piacse
al Eamloabnry Hall



